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Cloverlands is located in northern Montgomery County, approximately 1,000 feet south
of the Tennessee-Kentucky state line. The house stands on a 10-acre tract, which,
until recently, was part of a 232-acre farm.

This vernacular plantation house was built ca. 1820 by John Walton Barker. The original
part consisted of a story-and-a-half, brick house, built on a brick foundation and
covered with wooden shingles. The gable roof is pierced by five dormers, three on the
south elevation and two on the north. Two interior brick chimneys bisect the ridge,
one at each gable. Approximately twenty years later the house was enlarged by the
addition of one-story, brick wings to the gable ends and porches with four square
wooden pillars which connected the wings; the additions contain four brick chimmeys,
one for each of the principal rooms. These additions transformed the house from a
story-and-a-half vernacular form, commonly found in eastern Virginia (the first owner's
birthplace), to a form more generally found in the Deep South. Still another small
addition was attached to the northwest corner in the nineteenth century,

The early part of the house, when built, had a three-bay, symmetrical facade. In this
century, additional windows have been opened in this (south) elevation so that it now
has seven bays. The present facade, including additions, has eleven bays. The rear
or north elevation has been treated similarly except that the recessed porch has been
enclosed. The facade and early part of the north elevation were laid in Flemish bond
and the remaining elevations in American common bond.

In plan the house consists of two rooms separated by a center passage with a staircase.
The ca. 1840 additions transform this simple plan into an H-shaped arrangement and the
porches cause the overall plan to appear rectangular.

The principal rooms in the early section contain their original Federal mantels and
some of the painted and grained baseboards and chair rails. Portions of ‘the original
herringbone brick cellar floor remain. The two upstairs rooms are lighted by large
round head windows. c

A nineteenth-century log smokehouse stands approximately sixty feet northeast of the
house. It is presently cased with weatherboard and vertical board siding and covered
with a metal roof.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Cloverlands was built for John Walton Barker (born ca. 1793-7?) who emigrated to

Montgomery County, Tennessee, from Halifax County, Virginia, in 1809.

Barker's family

was one of the early families in this area, and his descendants are still found in north
central Tennessee and south central Kentucky.

Architecturally, the original portion of the building is a rare Tennessee example of the
style of vernacular house commonly constructed in eastern Virginia throughout the

eighteenth century.

The popularity of this style on the east coast of the Middle

Atlantic region had diminished by 1800 which probably accounts for its rarity in states

largely settled after the beginning of the nineteenth century.

Although the original

house is a stylistic transplant from Virginia, the ca. 1840 additions are more reflective
of houses found in the lower South.

This house, nearly 160 years old, is one of the oldest in Montgomery County, and it is
the only known example of this style of architecture in north central Tennessee.

Structurally the house is in remarkably good condition.

The present owners have under-

taken a careful, long-range restoration program and intend to occupy the house soon.
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